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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors ofNurol Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nurol Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. and its
subsidiary (“the Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2017, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes lo the consohdated financial statements, including a summaıy of sigrıiflcant
accounting polieies.

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairLy, in ali material
respects, the consolidated fınancial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. \Ve are independent of the Group
in accordance with the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Turkey, and ve have ftılflhled our other ethical
responsibilities in aceordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. \Ve believe that the audit
evidence ve have obtained is sufflcient and appropriate to provide a basis for otır opinion.

Key andit matters

Key nudit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, vere of most signifıcance in
our audit of the tinancial statements of the curent period. These matters ıvere addressed in the context
of our audit of the tinancial statements as ü whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and ve do not
provide a sepamte opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our deseription of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fultilled tlıe responsibilitles described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the nudit ot’ the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material rnisstatement of tlıe financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures perfonned to address the matters below, provide the basis for oıır audit
opinion on the accompanying consolidated fınancial statements.
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Iınpairnıent of loans and advances

There is a potential risk that loans and advances are impaired and no reasonable impairment
losses/provisions are provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS, accordingly determining
the adequacy of irnpairrnent allowance on Ioans and advances to custorners is a key area ofjudgrnent
for the rnanagement. Canying arnount of Loans and customers rnight be greater than the estirnated
recoverable amounts, therefore the irnpairment test of these Ioans of advances is a key audit matter.
Refer Note 10 to the consolidated financial staternents relating to the irnpairrnent of loans and
advances.

Our audit procedures included arnong others, selecting sarnpies of Ioans and advances based on our
judgernent and considering whether there is objective evidence that irnpairment exists on these loans
and advances. We also assessed whether irnpairment losses for loans and advances were reasonabiy
determined in accordance with the requirernents of IFRS. in addition we considered, assessed and
tested the relevant controls over granting, booking, monitoring and settlernent, and those relating to
the calculation of credit provisions, to confirm the operating effectiveness of the key controls in place,
which identiti the impaired Ioans and advances and the required provisions against thern.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Managernent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
staternents in accordance with IFRSs, and for such intemal control as rnanagernent deterrnines is
necessaiy to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial siatements that are free frorn rnaterial
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, the managernent is responsibie for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless rnanagernent either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s Fınancial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial staternents
as a whole are free frorn material rnisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs wili always detect a material rnisstatement
when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualiy
or in the aggregate, they could reasonabiy be expected to influence the econornic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

memberfirm ofErnll r?ouog Global Limıted
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As part of an nudit in aceordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticisrn throughout the audit. We also:

• İdentilŞş and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated Fınancial staternents,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is suWıcient and appropriate to provide a basis for nur opinion.
The risk of not detecting a materia misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting frorn error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the nudit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s intemal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poLicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related discLosures made by the Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropdateness of the Board of Director’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast sigiıifıcant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concem. If ve conclude that a material uncertainty exists, ve are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modiN our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

• Evaluate the overail presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
staternents. ineluding the disciosures. and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underiying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufflcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the finarıcial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consohdated flnanciai
staternents. \Ve are responsible for the direttion. supen’ision and performance of the Group
audit. We rernain soleiy responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other rnatters. the planned scope and
timing of the nudit and signiflcant audit flndings, inciuding any signifıcant deflciencies in intemal
control that ıve idendfv during our audit.

\Ve also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have cornplied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with thern al! relationships and other
matters that may reasonabiy be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
saftguards.

member rm ofErnsttYoung Global UmIled
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors we determine those matters İhat were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated fınancial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless Iaw or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest beneflts of such
communication.

The engagement partner who supervised and concluded this independent auditor’s report is Yaşar
Bivas.

Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
A member fırm of Emst cYoung Global Limited

Istanbul, Turkey
Februaıy 16, 2018

Yaşar Bivas
Partner, SMMM

Amember flrm of Erost Young Global Limıted



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Consolidated Statemeni of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Profıt or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 2

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 3

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenıs 5—59



NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Cıırreııcv - in (housands of Turkish Lira)

Andited Audited
31 December 31 December

Note 2017 2016

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 26,682 136,3 14
Reserve deposits at Central Bank 7 3 12,292 84,066
Derivative financial assets 8 1,665 2,593
Available for sale investments 9 136,519 45,514
Loans and advances to customers 10 1,060,453 777,401
Property and equipment 11 2,322 2,478
Investment property 13 4,440 19,920
Intangible assets 12 1,375 1,387
Deferred tax assets 20 3,256 3,082
Otherassets 14 145,156 96,796

Total assets 1,694,160 1,169,551

Liabilities

Funds borrowed 15 462,441 175,961
Debt securitles issued 17 638,849 525.853
Other liabilities 18 279,108 224,100
Derivative financial liabilities 22 18,83 1 12,703
Subordinated debts 16 57,267 53,364
Provisions 19 2,754 2,712
Current tax liability 5,946 6,640
Deferred tax liability 20 - -

Total liabilitles 1,465,196 1,001,233

Equity

Share capital 23 125,000 45,000
Reserves 23 35,488 27,446
Retained eamings 68,476 95,772

Total eguity 228,964 168,218

Total Iiabilities and eguity 1,694,160 1,169,551

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statemenrs.



NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞiRKETİ

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currenev - in (housands of Turkish Lira)

Audited Audited
1 January 1 January

31 December 31 December
Note 2017 2016

Interest income 24 203,006 139,3 12
Interest expense 24 (99,368) (56,253)
Net interest income 103,638 83,059
Fee and commission income 25 25,835 19,732
Fee and commission expense 25 (16,026) (5,56!)
Net fee and commission income 9,809 14,171
Net trading income / (Ioss) 26 (13,123) (28,135)
Otheroperating income 27 8,271 8,150

(4,852) (19,985)
Operating income 108,595 77,245

Net impairmentlrecoveries on Ioans 10 (5,321) (2,542)
Other provision expenses 28 (756) (232)
Personnel expenses 29 (14,61 8) (12,23 1)
Depreciation and amortization (1,208) (752)
Administrative expenses 30 (18,687) (11,638)
Profıt before income tax 68,005 49,850
Income taxexpense 20 (13.714) (8,767)
Profıt from continned operations 54,291 41,083

Profit for the period 54,291 41,083
Other comprehensive income to be redassifled to
profıt or Ioss in subsequent periods
Available-for-sale financial assets

Gam / (Loss) arising during the period 23 6,6! 9 (3,! 87)
Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income 20 (164) 1,386
Other comprehensive income (!oss) for the period,
net of income tax 6,455 (1,801)

Total comprehensive income for the period 60,746 39,282

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Fınancial staternents
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currency - in thousands of Turkish Lira)

Audited Audited
1 January- 1 January

31 December 31 December
[Yöre 2017(9 2016 (*)

Cash llows from operating activities
Net profit for the period 54,291 41,083
Adj ustments:
Depreciation and amortisation 11,12 1,208 752
Current tax expense 20 14,052 14,582
Deferred tax (income)/expense 20 (338) (5,815)
Provision for ban losses 10 5,321 2,542
Other provisions 756 232
Otheraccruals 8,173 (3,320)
Foreign exchange Ioss / (gam) (7,612) (6,322)
Fair value gam on investment property - (6,964)
Fair value gam on other assets (6,93 1) -

68,920 36,770
Changes in operating assets and Iiabilities
Change in derivative fınancial assets 928 20,456
Change in Ioans and advances to customers (286,824) (348,358)
Change in reserve deposits (227,697) (37,593)
Change in other assets (26,001) (95,170)
Change in other liabilities 46,785 182.157
Change in derivative fınancial Iiabilities 6,128 12,246
Change in borrowings 287,471 14,411
Taxes paid (16,892) (5,378)
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (216,102) (220,459)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purehase of available for sale investments (1,258,272) (175,409)
Sale ofavailable for sale investments 1,175,029 161.768
Purchase of property and equipment (64) (1,340)
Purchase of intangible assets (388) (521)
Proceeds from sale of investments property 10, 100
Net casb (used in) / provided by investing activities (73,595) (15,502)
Proceeds from debt securities issued 2,320,777 746,690
Repayment frorn debt securities issued (2,217,244) (603,237)
Proceeds from subordinated debts - 53,364
Net cash provided hy /(used in) financing activities 103,533 196,817

Effect of foreign eıchange rate change on cash and
cash eguivalents 7,612 6,322

Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents (109,631) (32,822)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 6 136,314 169.136

Cash and cash eguivalents af 31 December 6 26,682 136,314
(*) Cash flows from interest received and paid disclosed together. Interest received is amounting to TL 194,862
(31 December 2016: 131,350) and interest paid k amounting to TL 83,593 (31 December 2016: TL 51,611).

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of these ünancial slaternents.
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currency - İn ılıoıısands of Turkish Lira)

1. Corporate information

General

Nurol Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. (the “Parent Bank” or “Nurolbank”) was established in 1998 by the
permission of the council of Ministers Decree No. 98/11565 dated 6 August 1998, to finance
investment and foreign trade activities, and started its financial banking activities in May 1999.
Nurolbank is owned controlled by the Nurol Holding A.Ş.

Nurol Varlık Kiralama A.Ş. is established in 2017 to operate in asset leasing sector. Nurol Varlık
Kiralama A.Ş. has been registered in trade register as of June 14, 2017 and published in Turkey Trade
Registry Gazette numbered 9351 dated 20 June 2017. Nurol Varlık Kiralama A.Ş.’s paid in capital is
amounting to TL 50 as of December 31, 2017.

Nature of Activities of the Group

The Group activities include investment banking and corporate services such as asset and fınancial
leasing, lending and trade finance.

Nıırolbank operates as an investment bank and according to the current legislation for investment
banks, the Parent Bank is not authorised to receive deposits from customers. The Parent Bank’s head
office is located at Nurol Plaza in Maslak in İstanbul, Turkey.

The shareholders’ structure of the Parent Bank is as disclosed below:

Total
nominal Share

value of the percentage
Shareholders shares (%)

Nurol Holding A.Ş. 97,697 78.16
Nurol İnşaat ve Tie. A.Ş. 19,950 15.96
Other 7,353 5.88

The Parent Banks paid in capital has been increased by TL 80,000 provided from first dividend share
in the eurrent period (Januaıy 1- December 31,2016: None).

The shareholder having direct or indirect control over Ihe shares of the Parent Bank is Nıırol Group.
Nurol Group has operations in construction, defence, finance, tourism, health, mining, real estate,
marketing and manufacturing industries through 33 firms within the Nurol Group 4joint ventures and
Il domestic-foreign associates and subsidiaries.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Bank comprised the following members:

Ziya Akkurt Chairman
M. Oğuz Çarmıklı Depııty Chairnıan ofBoard
5. Ceyda Çarmıklı BoardMember
Ahmet Şirin ban! Member (Audit Conunittee Memher)
Yusuf Serbest Board A’Iember
Mehmet Mete Başol boardMemher (Corporate Governance Co,nmittee Meınber)
Ozgür Altuntaş Board Menıber — General Manager
Ahmet Kerim Kemahlı Board Member
Eyüp Sabri Çarmıkl ı Board Memher
Gürhan Çarmıklı Board Member
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Czcrrencv - in ıhousanth ol Turkish Lira)

2. The new standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting polieies adopted in preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2017 are consistent with those of the previous fınancial year, except for the adoption of new
and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 Januaıy 2017. The effects of these
standards and interpretations on the Group’s fınancial position and performance have been diselosed
in the related paragraphs.

i) The new standards, amendments and intcrpretations which are effective as at 1 Januaıy
2017 are as follows:

ii) IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows’. The amendments are intended to
clarif’ IAS 7 lo improve information provided to users of financial statements about an entitys
financing activities. The improvements to diselosures require companies to provide information about
changes in their fınancing liabilities. These amendrnents are to be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 Januaıy 2017 with earlier apptication permitted.

IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendments clarifS’ how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The amendments clarifv the
requirements on recognition of deferred fax assets for unrealised losses, to address diversity in
practice. These amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after
1 Januaıy 2017 with earlier appiieation permilled. However, on initial application of the amendment.
the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening
retained eamings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change
between opening retained eamings and other components of equitv. The amendments did not have an
impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Group.

Annual lmprovements to IFRSs - 2013-2016 Cyche

The IASB issued Annual Irnprovements to IFRS Standards 2014—2016 Cvcie. amending the following
standards:

- IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: This amendment clarifıes that an entity is
not required to disciose summarised financial information for interests in subsidiaries.
associates orjoint ventures that is ciassifled. or included in a disposal group thar is ciassifled.
as heid for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets HeId for Sale and Discontinued
Operatioııs. These arnendınents are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or afler 1
Januan’ 2017.

The amendments did not have an impaci on İlie financial position or performance of the Group.

ii) Standards issued but not yet effective and not cariy adopted

Standards, interpretations and arnendrnents to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the consolidated fınancial statements are as follows. The Group wiil make
the necessary changes if not indicated othenvise, which wilI be affecting the consolidated financial
statements and disclosures. when the new standards and interpretations becorne effective.

6



NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currency - bi ihousands of Turkish Lira)

2. The new standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture (Amendments)

Amendments issued to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, to address the acknowledged inconsisteney between the
requirements in IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the Ioss of control of a subsidiaıy that is
contributed to an associate or ajoint venture, to clarify that an investor recognises a fuli gam or loss on
the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor
and its associate orjoint venture. The gam or loss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of
an investment retained in a former subsidiaıy should be recognised oniy to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in that former subsidiaıy. in December 2015, the IASB postponed the effective
dale ofthis amendment indeflnitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method
of accounting. Early apphication of the amendments is stili permitted. An entity shall appiy tlıose
amendments prospectively. The amendment is not applicable for the Group and wili not have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new five-step model in the
standard provides the recognition and measurement requirements of revenue. The standard applies to
revenue from contracts with customers and provides a model for the sale of some non-Fınancial assets
that are not an output of the entity’s ordinaiy activities (e.g., the sale of property, plant and equipment
or intangibles). IFRS 15 effective date is 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. Entities wilI
transition to the new standard following either a full retrospective approach or a modifled retrospective
approach. The modiFıed retrospective approach would allow the standard to be applied beginning with
the current period, with no restatement of the comparative periods, but additional diselosures are
required. The amendment wilI not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Clarillcations to IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (Amendment)

IASB has published fınal ciarifications to IFRS 15 in April 2016. The amendments address three of
the five topics identifıed (identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations,
and licensing) and provide some transition relief for modifıed contracts and completed contracts. The
amendments are efTective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2018. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment wilI not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

in July 2014, the IASB issued the önal version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The fınal version of
IFRS 9 brings together ali three aspects of the accounting for financial instrııments project:
ciassifıcation and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is bııilt on a logical, single
ciassifıcation and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in which
they are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Buiit upon this is a forward-Iooking expected
credit ioss model that wiil result in more timeiy recognition of Joan losses and is a singie model that is
applicable to alI financial instruments subject to impairment accounting. in addition, IFRS 9 addresses
the so-called ‘own credit’ issue, whereby banks and others book gains throııgh profit or loss as a result
of the value of their own debt falhing due to a decrease in credit worthiness when they have ehected to
rneasure that debt at fair value. The Standard also includes an improved hedge accounting model to
bener link the econornics of risk management with its accounting treatment.
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONiM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currencv - bi thousands of Turkish Lira)

2. The new standards, amendments and interprctations (continued)

IFRS 9 is effeetive for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 Januaty 2018. with early appiication
permitted by applying al! requirements of the standard. Aitemativeiy. entitles may elect 10 early apply
oniy the requirements for the presentation of gains and losses on financial Iiabilities designated as
FVTPL without appiying the other requirements in the standard. The Group has performed an impact
assessment of IFRS 9. This assessment is based on currentiy avaiiabie information and may be subject
to changes arising from funher detailed anaiyses or additionai supportable information being made
available to the Group in the future. The impact of standard on ali three aspect5 of IFRS 9 is as
rol lows:

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets:

The Group does not expect a signiflcant impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying the
ciassification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9. it expects to continue measuring al fair value
al) financial assets currentiy heid at fair value. The equity shares in non-listed companies are intended
to be heid for the foreseeable future. No impairment losses were recognised in profit or loss during
prior periods for these investments. The Group wili appiy the option to present fair value changes in
OCi, and, therefore, the application of IFRS 9 wil! not have a signiflcant impact.

Loans and receivables are heid to collect contractuai cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash
flows representing soieiy payments of principal and interest. The Group anaiysed the contractual cash
flow characteristics of those instruments and concluded that they meet the criteria for amortised cost
measurement under IFRS 9. Therefore, reciassification for these instruments is not required.

Impairment:

iFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit losses on ali of its debt securities, loans and
receivables. either on a 12-month or lifetime bask. The Group has determined that, due to the
unsecured nature of its loans and receivabies. the Ioss ailowance wiil increase by TL 17-20 million
(Fuli TL) wiih corresponding related increase in the defened tax assets of TL 3,5 — 4 miilion (FuiI
TL).

Hedge accounting:

As the Group does not have any hedge instruments. !FRS 9 wilIl not have an impact on Group’s
financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

The IASB has published a new standard. IFRS 16 Leases’. The new standard brings most leases on
balance sheet for Iessees under a singie model. eliminating the distinetion between operating and
finance ieases. Lessor accounting however remains largeiy unchanged and the distinction between
operating and flnance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations and k effective for periods beginning on or after Januaıy 1.2019, with earher adoption
permitted if IFRS 15 ‘Revenue frorn Contracts wiih Customers’ has aiso been applied. The amendment
wiil not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Carrencv — in thousand.ç of Turkish Lira)

2. The new standards, amendments and interpretations (continned)

JFRS 2 Ciassifıcation and Measurement of Share—based Payment Transactions (Amendments)

The tASS issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, cIari’ing how to account for certain
types of share-based paymeat transactions. The amendments. provide requirements on the accounting
for:
a. the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the rneasıırement of cash-settled share-based
payments;
b. share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and
e. a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payrnent that ehanges the ciassification
of the transaction from eash-settled to equity-setded.

These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2018. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment are not applicable for the Group and wili not have an impoot
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments)

in September 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 4 insurance Contracts. The amendrnents
introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. These amendments are to be
applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2018. Earlier application is permitted. The
standard is not applicable for the the Group and wihl not have an impact on the financiah position or
performance of the Group.

IAS 40 tnvestment Property: Transfers of Invcstment Property (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 40 ‘investment Property t The amendments state that a change
in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the defınition of investment property and
there 15 evidence of the ehange in use. These amendrnents are to be applied for annuat periods
beginning on or afler 1 Januaıy 2018. Earlier application k permined. The Group is in the process of
assessing the impact of the amendments on fınancial position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Curreney Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation ciarifles the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of
advance consideration in a foreign cunency.

The hnterpretation states that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to ise on initial recognition of the related asset. expense or income is the date on which an entity
initiahiy recognises the non-monebry asset or non-monetaiy hiabihitv arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. An entity is not required to apphy this Interpretation to income taxes;
or insurance contraets (including reinsurance contracts) it issues or reinsurance contracts that it holds.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Earlier apphication is permitted. The interpretation is not apphicable for the Group and wili not have an
irnpact on the financial position or performance of the Groııp.
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONiM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currency — in tiıozsaıds of Tnrkish Lira)

2. The new standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2014-2016 Cycle

The IASB issued Annual lmprovements tü IFRS Standards 2014—2016 Cycle, amending the following
standards:

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of international Financial Reporting Standards: This amendment
deletes the short-term exemptions about some IFRS 7 disclosures, IAS 19 transition
provisions and IFRS 10 Investment Entities. These amendments are to be applied for annual
periods beginning on ot after 1 ianuary 2018.

- IAS 28 Investments in Associates and ioint Ventures: This amendment clarifles that the
election to measure an investment in an associate or ajoint venture held by, or indirectly
through, a venture capital organisation or other qualiŞing entity at fair vaiue through profit or
Ioss applying IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments is available for each associate orjoint venture, at
the initial recognition of the associate orjoint venture. These amendments are to be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments are not applicable for the Group and wiil not have an impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation elarifles how tü apply the recognition and measurement requirements in “hAS 12
Income Taxes” when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.

When there is uncertainty over income tax treatments, the interpretation addresses:
(ü) whether an entity considers uncertain tax trentments separateiy:
(b) the assumptions an entiry makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities:
(c) how an entity determines tıxable profit (tax Ioss). tax bases, unused tax losses. unused tax credits
and tax rates; and
(d) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

An entitv shall apply tlıis Interpretation for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies this lnterpretation for an earher period. it
shall diselose that fact. On initial application. an entity shall apply the interpretation either
retrospectively applying hAS 8. or retrospectively with the cumulative eWect of initialiy applyiııg the
Interpretation recognised at the date of initial application.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact oF the interpretation on financial position or
performance of the Group.

IFRS 17- The new Standard for insurance eontracts

The IASB issued IFRS 17, a comprehensive new accounting standard For insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 model combines a current balance
sheet measurement of insurance contract liabilities with the recognition of profit over the period that
services are provided. IFRS 17 wilI become efkctive for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021; early application is permitted. The standard is not applicable For the Group and
wili not have an impact on the önancial position or perfbrmance of the Group.
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currcncv - in thonsands of Tıırkish Lira)

2. The new standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)

Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)

in October 2017, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Assockıtes and Joint
Ventures. The amendments clarify that a group applies IFRS 9 Financial Insınunents to Iong-term
interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture.

IFRS 9 Fjnancjal Instruments excludes interests in associates and joint ventures accounted for in
accordance with tAS 28 investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. in this amendment the IASB
ciarifled that the exclusion in IFRS 9 applies only to interests a group accounts for using the equity
method. A group applies IFRS 9 to other interests in associates and joint ventures, including long-term
interests to which the equity method is not applied and that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in those associates and joint ventures.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januaıy 2018, with early
application permitted.

The Group has performed a high-level impact assessment of Amendments. This preliminaıy
assessment is based on currentiy available information and may be subject to ehanges arising from
further detailed anaiyses or additional supporiable information being made available to the Group in
the future. Overail, the Group expects no signiticant impact on its balance sheet and equity. The
amendments are not applicable for the Group and wiil not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)

in October 2017, the IASB issued minor amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to enable
companies to measure some prepayable financial assets at amortised cost.

Applying IFRS 9. a group would measure a fınancial asset with so-called negative compensation at
fair value through protit or loss. Applying the amendments, ifa specifıc condition is met, entities wili
be able to measure at amortised cost some prepayable fınancial assets with so-called negative
compensation.

The amendments are eFfective From annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early
application permiiled.

The Group has performed a high-Ievel impact assessment of Arnendments. This preliminaıy
assessment is based on currentiy available information and may be subject to changes arising from
ftırther detailed anaiyses or additional supportabie information being made available to the Group in
the future. Overail, the Group expects no signiflcant irnpact on its balance sheet and equity. The
amendrnent are not applicable for the Group and wili not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currency - in ihozısands of Turkish Lira)

2. The new standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)

Annual Improvements — 2015—2017 Cycle

in December 2017, the IASB announced Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015—2017 Cycle,
containing the following amendments to IFRSs:

• IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS Il Joint Arrangements — The amendments to IFRS
3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that k a joint operation, it
remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS Il clarii’y that
wlıen an entity obtainsjoint control of a business that is ajoint operation, the entity does not
remeasure previously held interests in that business.

• IAS 12 Income Taxes — The amendments clarify that alI income tax consequences of
dividends (i.e. distribution of proflts) should be recognised in profit or Ioss, regardless of how
the tax arises.

• IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — The amendments cIari’ that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes
part of the funds that an entity borrows generaliy when calculating the capitalisation rate on
general borrowings.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Group.

3. Consolidation

3.1 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Bank and its
sııbsidiaıy, which is the entity controlled by the Parent Bank. Control 15 achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those retuns through its power over the investee. When necessaıy, adjustments are made to the
consolidated financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accoıınting policies into line with those of
the Group. Nurol Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. has 100% ownership ofNurol Varlık Kiralama A.Ş.

Ali intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in fuli on consolidation.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the international Accoıınting Standards Board (“IASB”).

The Parent Bank maintains its book of account and prepares their statutoıy consolidated financial
statements in Turkish Lira (“TL”) in accordance with the accoıınting principles as promulgated by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”), Capital Markets Board of Turkey, the
Turkish Commercial Code and tax legislation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements
are derived from statutory consolidated financial statements with adjustments and reciassifications for
the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with IFRS. The subsidiaıy maintains its books of
accounts based on statutoıy rules and regulations applicable in its jurisdiction. The aceompanying
consolidaled financial statements are derived from statutoıy flnancial statements witlı adjııstments and
reciassifications For the purpose of fair presentation in accordance with IFRS.
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NUROL YATIRIM BANKASI ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currencv - in ihozısands of Turkish Lira)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The consolidated fınancial statements were authorised for issue by the Group’s ınanagement on 16
February 2018. The Group’s General Assembly and the other reporting bodies have the power to
amend the consolidated fınancial statements after their issue.

4.2 Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost bask except for the
following which are measured at fair value:

• derivative financial instruments
• fınancial instrurnents at fair value through profıt or loss.
• available-for-sale financial instruments.
• Investment property

43 Foreign eurrency transactions

Transactions in cunencies other than TL (foreign curencies) are recorded ot the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date. monetaiy items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetaıy
items carried af fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetaiy iterns that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Foreign curencv differences arising
on retranslation are recognised in profıt or loss.

Foreign currency translation rates used by the Group are as follows:

USD / TL (fulI) EUR / TL (fuli)
31 December20l7 3.7719 4.5155
31 December 2016 3.5 192 3.7099

4.4 Interest income and interest eıpense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the profit or Ioss using the etiective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
receipts throııgh the expected life of the tinancial asset or Iiability (or. where appropriate. ü shorter
period) to the carrying amount of the tinancial asset or Iiability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates future cash flows considering ali contractual terms of fınancial instrııment,
but not future credit losses. The effective interest rate 15 established on initial recognition of the
fınancial asset and liability and is not revised subsequently. The calculation of the effective interest
rate includes alI fees and points paid or received that are an integral pan of the effective interest rate.
Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attribnlable to the acquisition or issue ofa
financial asset or Iiability. Interest income and expense presented in the statement of comprehensive
income statement include:

the interest income on financial assets and Iiabilities at arnortised cost on an effective interest
rate basis
the interest income on heid for trading investrnents and available for sale investrnents.

Interest income is suspended when Ioans are impaired and is excluded from interest income until
received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currencv - bi thoiısands of 7’urkish Lira)

4. Signiflcant accounting policies (continued)

4.5 Fees and cammission

Fees and commission income and expense tlıat are integral to the effective interest rate on a fınancial
asset or Iiability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees. investment management fees,
sales commission and placement fees are recognised as the related seıwices are performed.

Fee for bank transfers and other banking transaction services are recorded as income when collected.

4.6 Net trading income

Net trading income comprises gains iess Ioss reiated to derivative fınanciai and liabiiities, and inciudes
ali realised and unrealised fair value changes and interest. Any realised or unrealised fair value
changes and interest of derivative financial assets and iiabiiities are recorded as trading income.

4.7 Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the shareholders right to receive the payments is estabhshed.

4.8 Taxation and deferred income taxes

income tax expense represents the sum of the tax curentiy payable and deferred tax.

Current lar

The tax currentiy payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profıt as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductibie in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxabie or deductible. The
Iiability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferreci lax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporaıy differences between the carıying amounts of assets and
iiabilities in the consolidated financial siatements and the corresponding tax bases which are used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generaily recognized for ali taxabie
ternporaıy differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for ali deductibie temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable proflts wili be available against which those deductibie
ternporary differences can be utilized. Suclı deferred tax assets and iiabiiities are not recognized if the
temporaıy difference arises frorn goodwill or frorn the initial recognition (other than in a bıısiness
combination) ofother assets and Iiabiiities in a transaction that affects neither the taxabie profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carıying arnount of defered tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that suffıcient taxable profıts wiil be available to ailow ali or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE F[NANCIAL STATENIENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Curreıwv — bi ıhousands of Turkish Lira)

4. Signifıcant accounting policies (continued)

Defered tax assets and Iiabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appiy in the period
in vhich the Iiability is seuied or the asset reaiized, based on tax rates (and tax Iaws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Since the applicable tax rate has been
changed to 22% for the 3 years beginning from 1 January 2018, 22% tax rate is used in the deferred
tax calculation of 31 December 2017 for the tempora’ differences expected to be realizedİclosed
within 3 years (for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020). However, since the corporate tax rate after 2020 is
20%, 20% tax rate is used for the temporaiy differences expected to be realizedlclosed after 2020.

The measurement of deferred tax iiabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences (hat would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date. to recover or senle the canying
amount of fts assets and iiabiiities.

Deferred tax assets and Iiabilities are offset when there Isa legaliy enforceable right to set offcurrent
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes ievied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to senle its current tax assets and Iiabilities ona net basis.

Curren! and defrrred taxfor the period

Current and defered tax are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they
reiate to items that are recognized outside profıt or loss (whether in otlıer comprehensive income or
directly in equity), in which case the tax is also recognized outside profit or Ioss. or where (hey arise
from the initial accounting for a business combination. in the case of a business combination, the tax
effect is taken into account in calculating goodwiil or determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquirees identiflable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost.

4.9 Financial assets and liabilities

4.9.1 Financüd Asset

Ali financial assets are initialiy measured at fair value, plus transaction costs.

Financiai assets are ciassifled into the foliowing specifıed categories: fınancial assets as at fair value
througlı profıt or ioss (FVTPL). ‘available-for-saie’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘ioans and receivables’.
The ciassification depends on the nature and purpose of the fınancial assets and is detenined at the
time of initial recognition.

Effcctive interesı method

The etTective interest method is a method of caiculating the amortized cost of a fınancial asset and of
ailocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactiy
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset. or. where
appropriate. a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initiai recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those fınanciah
assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profıt or loss are fınancial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated under this category upon initial recognition. A fınancial asset is classitied in this
category il’ acquired principaliy for the purpose of selling in the short-term or achieved more reievant
accoıınting measıırement. Derivatives are also categorized as heid for trading uniess they are
designated as hedges.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

ıl wıdable for sale (luanda! asseis

Quoted equity investments and quoted certain debt securities heid by the Group that are traded in an
active market are classifıed as being available-for-sale fınancial assets and are stated at fair value. The
ıınquoted equity investments that are not traded in an active market but are also ciassifıed as available
for-sale fınancial assets are stated at cost since their value cannot be reliabiy measured. Gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumuiated in the investments revaluation resen’e with the exception of impairment losses, interest
calculated using the effective interest method. and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetaıy
assets. which are recognized in profıt or ioss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gam or loss previousl accumulated in the investments revaiuation reserve
is reclassifled to profit or loss. Dividends on available for sale equiN instıtments are recognized in
profıt and Ioss when the Group has the right to receive an>’ payment.

The fair value ofavailable for sale monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currencv and tmnslated at the prevailing exchange rate nt the reponing date. The ehange in
fair value attributable to translation differences that result from a change in amoıtized cost of the asset
is recognized in profıt or loss. and other changes are recognized in equity.

Dııe (ron; banks and loans and advances to customers

Due from hanks and Ioans and advances to customers are non-derivative fınancial assets with flxed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and (hat the Group does not intend to
seli immediately or in the near term.

When the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially ali of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee, the arrangement is classifıed as a fınance
lease and a receivable equal to the net investment in the iease is recognised and presented within loans
and advances.

When the Grotıp purchases a fınancial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreemenı to reseil the
asset (or a substantialiy similar asset) at a fıxed price on a Future date (“reverse repo or stock
borrowing”), the arrangement k accounted for as amounts due from hanks, and the underlying asset is
not recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Due from banks and Ioans and advances to cııstomers are initialiy measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Impairmc’nt of(manda! assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or ioss are subject 10 impairment testing
at each baiance sheet date to determine whether there is any iııdication of impairment of fınancial asset
or fınancial asset group. An entity shall assess at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a fınancial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
group of fınanciai assets is impaired and impairment losses are inctırred, if and oniy it there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more evenis that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that ioss event or events has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of fınancial assets that can be reliabiy estimated. For ioans and
receivabies, the amount of impairment is the difference between the asset’s carıying amount and the
present value of estimated hıture cash iows discounted nt the original effective interest rate.
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4. Signifıcant accounting poiicies (continued)

The canying amount of the fınancial asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in allowance accounts are recognized in profit or loss.

With the exception of available for sale equity instruments, if. in a subseqııent period the arnount of
the impairment Ioss decreases and the decrease can be related objectiveiy to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment ioss is reversed through profıt
or loss to the extent the carıying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortized cost wouhd have been had the impairmenı not been recognized.
Inerease in fair value of avaihable for sale fınancial assets subsequent to impairmeni is recognized in
directiy in equity.

Reyossessed asse!s

As part of its treatment of defauited hoans and guarantees. the Group in a number of cases takes over
assets as security for such exposures. Upon repossession the assets are vaiued at ıheir presumed
reahisabie vaiue. Any deviation from the canying value of a defauhted or wriuen down exposure upon
takeover is ciassifled as a ban write-down. Repossessed assets are carried aceording to type. Upon
final disposah, the deviation from carn’ing value is entered in profit or Ioss based on the asset’s type in
the accounts.

Cash and cash equivalenıs

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highiy
hiquid investrnents which rheir maturities are three months or hess from date of acquisition and that are
readiiy convertibie to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignifıcant risk of changes in
value.

Derecoyılılon offınancial asseıs

The Group derecognizes a fınancial asset oniy when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire. or when it transfers the fınancial asset and substantially ali the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially ali the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to controi the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its
retained interest in the asset and an associated hiabihity For arnounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantiahly ali the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred fınancial asset, the Group
continues to recognize the fınancial asset and aiso recognizes a cohlaterahized borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currency - in thousands of Turkish Lira)

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.9.2 Finaızcial Liabiitks

Financial iiabilities and equity instmments issued by the Group are ciassifled according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the defınitions of a fınancial liabiiity and
an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting ali of its iiabilities. The accounting poiicies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial Iiabiiities are classifled as either fınancial iiabilities at FVTPL or other fınanciai iiabilities.

Financial liabititles al fair vahıe through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are ciassifıed as at FVTPL where the fınancial liability is either heid for trading or
it is designaied as at FVTPL. Financial iiabiiities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant
gam or ioss recognized in profıt or loss. The net gam or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates
any interest paid on the financial liabiiity.

Otizer financial liabilities

Other fınancial liabiiities, including funds borrowed, are initialiy measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Other financial iiabiiities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method plus the interest expense recognized on an effective yieid basis.

Deyosüs, funds borrowed and delil securities issued

The Group is not entitied to coilect deposits. Current accounts of ban customers and funds borrowed
are the Group’s sources of debt funding.

Current accounts of ban customers and funds borrowed are initially measured at fair vaiue plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognilion offinancial liahulities

The Group derecognizes fınancial liabiiities when, and oniy when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Derivcıtive financial instrzunenfs

Derivative fınancial instruments are initialiy recognised at fair value on the date wlıieh a derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair vaiue of derivatives that do not qualil’ for hedge accounting are recognised in profıt or
loss.

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions. lo the extent publiciy available, and vaiııation techniques, inciııding discoıınted cash flow
modeis and options pricing modeis as appropriate. Ali derivatives are carried as assets when fair vaiııe
is positive and as liabilities when fair valııe is negative.
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AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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4. Significant accounting policies (contillued)

4.10 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumuiated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-Iine method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets heid under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership wiil be obtained by the
end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

The gam or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carıying amount of the asset and k
recognized in profit or loss.

4.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separatehy are reported at cost less accumuiated amortization and
accumuiated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-Iine basis over their estimated
ııseful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed atthe end ofeach annual
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective bask.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitahized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives (three to
Fıve years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directiy associated with the development of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group, and that sviil probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets. Costs inciude the software
development empioyee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

4.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that Iıave an indefinite useful life, for exampie goodwill, are not subject to amortization and are
tested annuahiy for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value hess costs
to seli and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are groııped at the iowest
leveis for which there are separateiy identiflabhe cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwihh that sııtlered impairment are reviewed for possible reversah of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
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4. Signifıcant accounting policies (continued)

4.13 Investment propertles

lnvestment properties are properties heid to eam rentais andior for capital appreciation, including
property under construction for such purposes. Investment properties are measured initialiy at cost,
ineluding lransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investrnent properties are stated at fair
valuc. The Group’s investment properties are valued by extemal, independent valuation companies on
a periodic basis. The fair values are based on market values, being the estimated amount for which a
property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller
in an arm’s Iength transaction. in the absence of available current prices in an active market, the
valuations are based on estimated cash flows expected to be received.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the
profit or Ioss in the period in which they arise. When the use of a property changes such that it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for subsequent accounting. If owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and
equipment up 10 the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or vhen the investment property is permanentiy
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefıts are expected from disposal. Any gam or Ioss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) iş included in profıt or ioss in the period in which the propertş is
derecognized.

4.14 Leases

Leases are classified as fınance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially ali the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. AlI other ieases are classifıed as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets heid under fınance leases are initialiy recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if Iower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding iiabiiity tü the lessor iş included in the statement of fınancial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease paments are apportioned between fınance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
tü achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the iiability. Finance expenses are
recognized immediateiy in profıt or loss. unless they are directiy auributable to quaIif’ing assets.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from iessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables nt the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a conslant periodic rnte of retum on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized ona straight-Iine basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized ona straight-line basis over the hease term.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continucd)

4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable ıhat the Group wiil be required to senle ıhaı obligation. and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and ııncertainties sunounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to senle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or alI of the economic beneflts required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
wilI be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

4.16 Employee benefıts

Termination and retirement benefıts

Under Turkish law and union agreements. Iump sum payments are made to empioyees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Group. Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement
benefit plan as per international Accounting Standard No. 19 (revised) “Employee Beneflts” (“IAS
19’).

The retirement benefıt obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present valtıe of the
defıned benefit obligation.

Profıt-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

4.17 Fiduciary asscts

Assets heid by the Group in a fıducian, agency or custodian capaciw for its customers are not
included in the balonce sheet. since such items are not treated as assets of the Group.

4.18 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires rnanagement to make judgernents.
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting pohicies and the reported amounts
ofassets. liabilities. incorne and expenses. Actual resuhts may differ from these estirnates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoıınting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any ftıture periods
affected.
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4. Signifıcant accounting policies (continued)

4.19 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Alloıvancesfor crediı losses

Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in accounting
policy 3.10.

The specifıc counterparty component of the total allowances for impairment applies to fınancial assets
evaluated individually for impairment and is based upon managements best estimate of the present
vaiue of the cash flows that are expected to be received. in estimating İhese cash flows, management
makes judgements about counterparty’s fınancial situation and the net reaiisable value of any
underiying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and
estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by the Credit Risk
Function.

Deıerı,ıiııiııgfair valves

The determination of fair vaiue for fınancial assets and Iiabilities for which there is no observabie
market price requires the use of valuation techniques as described in accounting policy 3.10. For
fınancial instruments that reqııire varying degrees of judgement depending liquidity, concentration,
uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specifıc instrument.
See also “Valuation of fınancial instruments” below.

4.20 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in TL, which is the Group’s functionai currency.
Except as indicated, financial information presented in TL has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Currencv — in thoıısands of Turkish Lira)

5. Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity: that engages in business aetivities from which it
may eam revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the same entity), whose operating results are regulariy reviewed by the entity’s
chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group operates in investment, retail and corporate banking and asset leasing. Accordingty, the
Group invests with the funds provided by using the capital market instruments and provides
consultancy services so as to provide effıcient management and sound Fınancial structure to business
enterprises.

The Group provides investment and operating Ioans to its commercial and retail customers and also
provides service packages consisting of foreign İrade operations, investment products, cash
management, financial leasing, factoring, and other banking products.

Major financial statement items according to business lines:

Total operations
31 December 2017 Corporate banlüng Other(*) of the Group
Operating income 97,915 10,680 108,595
Expenses (40,590) - (40,590)
Profit before income tax 57,325 10,680 68,005
Income tax incomeiexpense - - (13,714)
Profit from continued operations 57,325 10,680 54,291
Profit for the period 43,611 10,680 54,291
Segment assets 1 ,694,083 77 1,694,1 60
Non-distributed Asset - - -

Total assets 1,694,083 77 1,694,160
Segment hiabilities 1.465,196 - 1,465,196
Shareholders’ eguity - 228,964 228.964
Total Iiabilities 1,465,196 228,964 1,694,160

(‘9 inclııdes investment, retaH and other banking business lines.
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5. Segment reporting (continued)

Total operations
2016 Corporate banking Other(*) of the Group
Operating income 67,847 9,398 77,245
Expenses (27,395) - (27.395)
Profit before income tax 40,452 9.398 49,850
Income tax income/expense - - (8,767)
Profıt from continued operations 31,635 9,398 41,083
Profıt for the period 3 1,685 9398 41,083
Segment assets 1,169,447 104 1,169,551
Non-distributed Asset - - -

Total assets 1,169,447 104 1,169,551
Segment liabilitles 1,001,333 - 1,001,333
Shareholders’ eguiw - 168.218 168,218
Total Iiabllities 1,001333 168,218 1,169,551

Gcognıp!ıkal coııceııtratioıı

Non-cash Capital Net profit
Assets Liabilities Ioans expenditures / (Ioss)

31 December 2017
Domestic 1,503,181 1,477,895 606,070 2.322 54,291
European Union countries 34,015 131,929 367 - -

OECD countries 6,933 37.797 - - -

USA.Canada Isı - - - -

Otlıercountries 149,880 46.539 - - -

Total 1,694,160 1.694,160 606,437 2,322 54,291

31 December 2016
Domestic 1,027,598 1.072.859 542,776 2,478 41,083
European Union countries 1,624 35,336 - - -

OECD countries 11,173 - - - -

USA, Canada 5,725 35.21 1 - - -

Other countries 123,131 26.145 - - -

Total 1,169,551 1,169,551 542,776 2,478 41,083
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6. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Cash and balances with central banks 3,452 314
— Cash on hand 99 95
- Bcdcınces with central banks 3.353 219

Due [rom banks and financial institutions 23,230 93,54!
Placements at money markets - 42,459

Cash and cash eguivalents in the balance sheet 26,682 136,314

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the delalls of the balances with central banks and
due from banks and fınancial institutions are as follows:

31 December 2017

Amount Effective interest rate

Turkish Foreign Turkish Foreign

Lira currency Lira currency

Balances with Central Bank 5 3,348 - -

Due from banks and financial institutions 454 22,776 1 1.9% 1.2%
Placement at money markets - - - -

Total 459 26,124

31 December 2016

Amount Effective interest rate

Turkish Foreign Turkish Foreign

Lira currency Lira currency

Balances with Central Bank 1 218 - -

Due from banks and financial institutions 40.175 53,366 9.1% 0.8%
Placement at money markets 42,459 - 10.1% -

Total 82,635 53,584
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7. Reserve deposits at Central Bank

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Turkish Lira 253,397 57,161
Foreign curreney 58,895 26,905

3 12,292 84,066

As of December 31, 2017, the compulsoıy rates for the reserve deposits at the Central Bank of Turkey for
Turkish Lira are implemented within an interval from 4% to 10.5% depending on the maturity of deposits
(December 31, 2016 — 4% to 10.5%) and the compulsory rates for the foreign currency liabilitles are within an
interval ftom 4% to 24% depending on the maturity of deposits and other liabilities (December 3!, 2016—4.5%
to 24.5%).

in accordance with the “CommuniquĞ Regarding the Reserve Requirements”, the reserve requirements can be
maintained as TL, USD, BiR and standard gold.

According to CBRT press release No. 2014-72 dated October 21,2014, stading from November 2014, interest is
paid on reserve requirements held in TL. Additionally, according to T. C. Central Bank press release No. 2015-
35 dated May 2,2015, staıting from May 5, 2015 interest is paid on USD reserve deposits, reserve options and
unrestricted deposits.

8. Financial assets at fair value through profit or Ioss

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Derivative financial assets-held for trading 1,665 2,593

Total FVTPL 1,665 2,593

Income and losses comprising the gains and losses related to and Iiabilities and realised and ıınrealised
fair value changes are reflected in the statement of profit or Ioss as net trading income / (Ioss).
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9. Available for sale investments

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Effective Effective

Amount interest rate Amount interest rate
Available-for-sale investments
at fair value

Debt instruments 98,897 13.38% 18,991 12.85%
Equity instruments — listed tb) 31,384 26,363
Equity instruments — unlisted 6,238 160

Total available-for-sale
investments M fair value 136,519 45,514

(a) Available for sale debt instruments include govemment bonds denominated in TL amounting to TL 813 (31
December 2016: TL 805), bank bonds amounting to TL 5,042 (31 December 2016: 2,044) and Eurobonds
amounting to TL 86,039 (31 December 2016: 3,699) and the remaining portion amountkg to TL 7,003 (31
December 2016: TL 12.443) consists of private sector bonds.
(b) The Group holds 15.97% of Nurol Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş. (“Company”)’s shares as of 31
December 2017 and the investment is accounted under available for sale investments, as the Group has no
signifıcant influence on the Company. As of the balance sheet date the shares are accounted for using the market
price and fair value reserve ofTL 29,167 Thousand is accounted under equity (31 December 2016: TL 24,146
Thousand).

10. Loans and advances to customers

31 December 2017
Amount

Foreign
TL currency Total

Finance lease receivables - - -

Factoring receivables - - -

Short-term Ioans 504.726 3,004 507,730
Medium and Iong-term loans 238.454 315,450 553,904

Total performing Ioans 743,180 318,453 1,061,633

Lcss: Portfolio provision 7,943 - 7,943

Non-performing loans 3,267 - 3,267
Less: Reserve for possible ban losses (3,235) - (3,235)

Tolal non-performing Ioans (net) 32 - 32

Transferred assets (*) 6,730 - 6,730

Total Ioans, net 741,999 318,454 1,060,453

Transferred asseis eornprise non—perlörming loans amuunling to Il. 9.035. ii gross lranslrred to an asset managemeni
companv under revenuc shariııg arrangement in 2015. but niye not been derecognized hy the rarenı I3ank as the Parent
t3ank has retained sııbstanıiallv ali the risks and rewards ol ownership of the transirred asset. The Parent Bank rellects
such 1 oan s at amorti zed en st net of i in pai rrnen t in the state ment of 15 nane i al pos it i on.
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31 December 2016
Amount

Foreign
TL currency Total

Finance lease receivables - - -

Factoring receivables 46,! 69 - 46,169
Short-term Ioans 227,222 8,600 235,822
Medium and long-term Ioans 184,358 310.451 494,809

Total performing Ioans 457,749 319,051 776,800

Less: Portfolio provision 5,829 - 5,829

Non-performing loans 28 - 28
Less: Reserve for possible ban losses (28) - (28)

Total non-performing Ioans (net) - - -

Transferred assets (*) 6,430 — 6,430

Total loans, net 458,350 319,051 777,401
“Iransflrred assets eornprise non-performing cins arnountıng to Il. 9.035, in gross transferred to an asset nmnagenıent

cornpany under revenue sharing arrangernent in 2015. but have not hecn derecognized hy the Parenı hlank as the Parent hlank
has retained substantially al! the risks and rewards of ownership of the transfirred asset. The Parent Bank rehlects such oans
al anıortized cost net of impairmenı in the slaternent of financial position.

Movements in non-performing Ioans:

31 December 31 December
20162017

Reserve at beginning of period 5,857 3,311
Provision for possible ban losses 5,339 2,668
Recoveries (18) (126)
Provision, net of recoveries 5,32! 2,542
Disposal of non-peh’orming Ioans - 4
Reserve at end of period 11,178 5,857
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il. Properfy and equipment

Offıce Furniture and Other fıxed
eguipment fıxfures assets Total

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2017 2,996 330 1,309 4,635
Acquisitions 372 8 188 568
Disposals - - - -

Balance af 31 December
2017 3,368 338 1,497 5,203

Depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2017 1,480 127 550 2,157
Depreciation charge for the
period 439 53 232 724
Disposais - - - -

Balance af 31 December
2017 1,919 180 782 2,881
Carrying value as of 31
Decemher 2017 1,449 158 715 2,322

OWıce Furniture and Other fixed
Eguipment fıxtures assets Total

Cost
Balance nt 1 Januaıy 2016 1,666 319 1,309 3,294
Acquisitions 1,330 Il - 1,340
Disposais - - - -

Balance af 31 December
2016 2,996 330 1,309 4,635

Depreciation
Balance at 1 Januaıy 2016 1,297 76 320 1,693
Depreciation charge for the
period 183 51 230 464
Disposais - - - -

Balance af 31 December
2016 1,480 127 550 2,157
Carrying value as of 31
December 2016 1,516 203 759 2,478

As of 3! December 2017 tangible assets svere insured lo the extent to TL 2,322 in total.

The estimated useful hives are as fohlows:

Motor velıicles 5 - 7 years
Offıce equipment. furniture and flxtures 5 - 15 years
Leased assets shorter of 5 - 10 years and the lease tenıı
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12. Intangible assets

Sofövare Total

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2017 4,832 4,832
Additions 472 472

Balance at 31 December 2017 5,304 5,304

Amortization and impairment

Balance at 1 January 2017 3,445 3,445

Amortization charge for the period 484 484

Balance at 31 December 2017 3,929 3,929

Carrying valuc as of 31 December 2017 1,375 1,375

Sofüvare Total

Cost
Balance at 1 January 20 16 4,3 1 1 4,3 Il
Additions 521 521

Balance at 31 December 2016 4,832 4,832

Amortization and impairment

Balanceat 1 January 2016 3,157 3,157
Amortization charge for the period 288 288

Balance at 31 December 2016 3,445 3,445

Canying value as of 31 December 2016 1,387 1,387
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13. Investment property

As of 31 December 2017, the Group has investment property amounting to TL 4,440 (31 December
2016: 19,920). The Group accounts its investment property under fair value model.

14. Other Assets

The Group concluded a “Pre-emption agreement” over the real estate property, for the twelve months
period with the value of 24.4 million USD and for the eighteen months period with the value of 26.2
million USD. As of 31 December 2017 the First twelve months of agreement has expired and based on
the agreement the Group has recognized 26.2 million USD in other assets.

The Group coneluded a “Right to repurchase agreement” over the real estate property with the value of
8.5 million USD.

Funds borrowed
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Foreign Foreign
TL currency Total TL currency Total

Funds borrowed 69,506 332,915 402,421 1 1,531 148,602 160,133
Obligations under repurchase
agreements 1,018 59,002 60.020 15,828 - 15,828

70,524 391,917 462,441 27,359 148,602 175,961
The effective interest rate for funds borrowed denominated in USD k 4.51% (31 December 2016—
0.56%), in EUR is 2.69% (31 December 2016— 1.02%) and in TL is 12.34% (31 December 2016—
9.72%).

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, inlerest or redemption amounts or other breaches of
ban covenants as at 31 December 2017 (3 1 December 2016 — None).

16. Subordinated debts

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Foreign Foreign

TL currency Total TL currency Total
Bonds (*)

- 57,267 57,267 - 53,364 53,364

- 57,267 57,267 - 53,364 53,364

(1 The Parent Bank has made eurobond issue ata nominal value of USD 10,000,000 with a coupon payment
once n 6 months, tixed rate, and 10 years of maturity through sales to qualifled investors method on March 31,
2016 and received a ban from World Business Capital atan amount of USD 5,000,000 with an interest rate of
6,65%, 10 years maturity, tloating rate and quarterly interest payment on December 27, 2016. (31 December
2016:- USD 15,000,000)

15.
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17. Debt securities issued

18.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Foreign Foreign

TL Currency Total TL currency Total
Bonds 559,703 - 559.703 43 1,659 - 431.659
BilIs 79,146 - 79.146 94,194 - 94,194

638,849 - 638,849 525,853 - 525,853

As of December 31. 2017, the list of the issued bonds by the Parent Bank are shown below:

MATURİTY NOMİNAL INTEREST
ISSUE TYPE ISSUL DATE DATE DAYS VALUL ( fulI TL) RATE

BOND 21.07.2017 12.01.2018 175 74.850.000 13.95%

BOND 07.08.2017 26.01.2018 172 60,000,000 14.00%

BOND 24.08.2017 16.02.2018 176 52.300.000 14.15%

BOND 20.09.2017 14.03.2018 175 50,000,000 14.00%

BOND 11.10.2017 07.02.2018 119 97,500,000 14.00%

BİLL 18.10.2017 19.10,2018 366 29,150,000 14.19%

BOND 09.11.2017 08,03.2018 119 163,000.000 14.10%

BOND 24.11.2017 04.04.2018 131 100,000,000 14.25%

BOND 12.12.2017 13.04.2018 122 50,000,000 14.75%

BOND 28.12.2017 03.05.2018 126 50.000.000 15.00%

Other Iiabilities

31 December 31 Dccember
2017 2016

Cash coliaterals (t) 265,129 210,109
Taxes and funds payable 3.831 2.381
Others 10.148 11.610

279,108 224,100
() The balance ineludes eash collatemis received tör the derivative transactions made with the corporate customers.
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19. Provisions

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Provision for non-cash Ioans 908 906
Employee termination benefits 857 693
Unused vacation accrual 863 660
Provision for Iawsuits 126 407
Bonus accrual - -

Other - 46
2,754 2,712

The movement in vacation pay liability is as follows:

2017 2016
At 1 Januaıy 660 460
Provision provided /(reversal) 203 200
At 31 December 863 660

The movement in provision for bonus accrual is as follows:

2017 2016

At t Januaıy - 1,000

Provision provided 1,000 1,000

Bonus paid (1,000) (2,000)

At 31 December - -

The movemeni in provision for employee termination beneflıs k as follows:

2017 2016

At 1 Januarv 693 685

Provision provided/(reversal) 164 8

At31 December 857 693
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19. Provisions (eontinued)

Employee termination benefits

Under Turkish Labor Law, the Group is required to pay tentination beneflts to each employee who has
completed certain years of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, who is
called up for militan sen’ice, dies or retires after completing 25 years (20 years for women) of senice
and reaches the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for men).

The amount payable consists of one month’s salaiy limited to a maximum ofTL 4,732.48 for each pedod
of service at 3 1 December 2017 (2016: TL 4,297.2 1).

Retirement pay Iiability is not subject to any kind of funding legally. Provision for retirement pay
Iiability is calculated by estimating the present value of probable liability amount arising due to
retirement of employees. IAS 19 Emplayee Beneflıs stipulates the development of company’s
Iiabilities by using actuarial valuation methods under defined benefit plans. in this direction. actuarial
assumptions used in calculation oftotal Iiabilities are described as follows:

The principal assumption is that the maximum Iiability for each year of service wilI increase parallel with
infiation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real mte after adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future infiation. Consequently, in the accompanying consolidated tinancial
statements as at 31 December 2017, the provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of
the future probable obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of the employees. The
provisions at the respective balance sheet dates have been calculated by using 8.00% (3 1 December 2016:
7.00%) annual infiation rate and 12.00% (31 December 2016: 11.00%) discount rate.

20. Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in accordance with the tax procedures and the legislation effective in
Turkey.
in Turkey, corpomte tax rate is 20%. However. in accordance with the addition of temporaty IOth
article to the Corporate Tax Law. 20% corpomte tax rate wiihi be applied as 22% to the protits of the
entities relating to 2018, 2019 and 2020 tax periods (for the entities with special accounting period
wili be applied to the tax periods commenced in related year). This rate is apphicabie to the tax base
derived upon exemptions and deductions stated in the tax legislation and by addition of disallowabhe
expenses to the commercial revenues of the companies wiih respect to the tax legislation. Corporate
tax 15 required to be filed by the twenty-flfth day of the foıırth month following the balance sheet date
and taxes must be paid in one instalment by the end of the fourth month.

The tax legislation provides for a temporaıy tax of 20% (wilI be appiied as 22% for 2018. 2019 and
2020 tax periods) to be caiculated and paid based on eamings genemted for each quarter. The amounts
thus calculated and paid are offset against the final corporate tax Iiabilitv for the year.

Corporate tax losses can be carried forward for a maximtım period of 5 years fohlowing the year in
which the hosses vere incurred. The tax authorities can inspect tax returns and the related accounting
records for a retrospective maximum period of five years.
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20. Taxation (continued)

Income tax recognised in the ineome statement

The componenis of income tax expense as stated below:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Current tax
Current income İax (14,052) (14,582)

Deferred income / (expense) tax
Relating to origination and reversal oftemporary differences 338 5,815

Income tax expense reported in the income statement (13,714) (8,767)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profıt multiplied by the statutory income tax
rate for the years ended 3! December 20! 7 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Profit before income tax 68,005 49,850
Income tax using the domestic corporate tax rate 20% (13,601) (9.970)
Other (113) 1,203

Total income tax expense in the profit or Ioss (13,714) (8,767)

Movement of net deferred tax assets can be presented as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Defered tax assets / (liabiliiy), net at 1 Januaıy 3,082 (4,1 19)
Deferred tax recognised in the proflt or loss 338 5.8 15
Deferred income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (164) 1,386

Deferred tax assets/(Iiabilities), net at end of December 3.256 3,082

Deferred tax assets and Iiabilities

Deferred tax asseis and Iiabilities are atiributable tü the following:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Asse(s Liabilities Net Asse(s Liabilitics Net

LiabiIitv For employee benetits 379 - 379 27! - 271
Valuation ofavailable

For sale financial assets - - - 68 . 68
Economic life propertv and
equipment - (171) (171) - (136) (136)
Derivatives 3,737 - 3,737 2,022 - 2,022
Prepaid commissions - - - - - -

Other (689) - (689) 1,261 (404) 857

3,427 (171) 3,256 3,622 (540) 3,082
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21. Commitments and contingencies

in the normal course of business, the Group enters into a number of contractual eommitments on
behalf of its customers and is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These contractuai commitments consist of commitments to extend
credit, commercial ietters of credit and standby letters of credit and guarantees. Commitments to
extend credit are agreements to iend to a customer as long as there 15 no violation of the conditions
established in the contract. Commercial Ietters ofcredit ensure payment by a bank to a third party For a
customer’s foreign or domestic trade transactions, generaliy to finance a commercial contract for the
shipment of goods.

Standby letters of credit and flnanciai guarantees are conditional commitments issued by the Group to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Ali of these arrangements are related to the
normal lending activities of the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit loss in the event of fon
performance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
commercial and standby ietters of credit is represented by the contractuai notional amount of those
instruments. The Group uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional
obiigations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

As at 31 December 2017; commitments and contingencies comprised the foliowing:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Letters of guarantee 552,202 469,152
Bankacceptance 3,183 65,105
Letters ofcredit 5 1,052 8,5 19
Othercommitments 273 249
Total 606,710 543,025

22. Derivative financial liabilities

As at 31 December 2017; derivative financiai instruments are comprised the foilowing. Tlıis tabie
shows the fair values ofderivative financial liabilities.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Notional Amount Notional Amount
Fair Vaiue in TL eguivalent Fair Vaiue in TL eguivalent

Derivative financial
liabilities— FVTPL 18,831 1,471,761 12,703 1,031,617

18,831 1,471,761 12,703 1,031,617
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23. Share capital and reserves

Share capital

As at 3! December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the composition of shareholders and their respective
percentage of ownership are summarised as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Amount % Amount %

Nurol Holding A.Ş. 97,697 78 35,171 78
Nurol İnşaat ve Tie. A.Ş. 19,950 16 7,182 16
Nurol Otelcilik ve Turizm Işletmeciliği A.Ş. 1,103 1 397 1
Others 6,250 5 2,250 5

Total 125,000 45,000

As at 31 December 2017, the authorised share capital comprised of 125,000 ordinary shares having a
par value ofTL FulI 1,000 (As at 31 December 2016, the authorised share capital comprised of 45,000
ordinary shares having a par value ofTL fiili 1,000). AlI issued shares are paid.

Legal reserves

The legal reseıwes consist of first and second legal reserves in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of the statutory profıts at the rate of 5%,
until the total reserve reaches a maximum of 20% of the entity’s share capital. The seeond legal
reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% of alI distributions in excess of 5% of the entity’s share
capital. The first and second legal reserves are not available for distribution unless they exceed 50% of
the share capital, but may be used to absorb losses in the event that the general reserve is exhausted.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s legal reserves amounted to TL 4,500 (31 December 2016 —TL
2,9 13).

Available-for-sale reserve

The available-for-sale reserve ineludes the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
available for sale investments ııntil the investment is derecognised or impaired.

Movement in available-for-sale reserve is as follows:
At 31 December 2016 24,533

At 1 Januaıy 2017 24,533

Clıange in fair value ofavailable-for-sale financial assets (net oftax) 6,455

At 31 December 2017 30,988
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24. Net interest income

25.

Fee and commission expense
Non-cash Ioans
Other
Total fee and commission expense

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Interest income
Loans and advances to customers 1 85,456 134,659
Deposits witlı banks and other financial institutions 4,952 2,097
HeId for trading and available for sale investments 12,089 2,089
Financial leases - 26
Other 509 441

203,006 139,312

Interest expense
Fundsborrowed 14,398 5,815
Debt securities issued 8 1,941 48,441
lnterbank funds borrowed 2,21 1 1,997
Other 818 -

99,368 56,253

Net interest income 103,638 83,059

Net fee and commission income

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Fee and commission income
Non-cash loans 8,368 5,615
Other(*) 17,467 14,117
Total fee and commission income 25,835 19,732

(9 RighI to purehose, which k calculaled with rcspccL to real estate right to purchase agrcemcnt concluded with a company, is rccognized
as revenuc throurh rcdiscounting the premium amount.

15,280 4,853
746

16,026 5,561

Net fee and commission income 9,809 14,171

708
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26. Net trading income/Ioss

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Gain/(Ioss) on foreign exchange rate fluctuations 14,108 (13,513)
Gam / (Ioss) from securities 1,546 1,145
Gam / (loss) on derivatives (28,777) (15,767)

Total (13,123) (28,135)

Other operating income

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Gam on Increase in purehase right() 6,93! -

Reversal of provision 169 273
Fair value gam on investment properties - 6,964
Other 1,171 913

8,271 8,150
(*) Tim Parent Bank hat gained neome from ilie increase in the vaine of the ptırclıase right over tim real estate wtticit k passed oto the owıersitip of tim Parent
Bank because of the ban debt.

28. Other provision expenses

29.

27.

1 January- 1 January
31 December 31 December

2017 2016
Bonus expenses - -

Unused vacation expenses 203 25
Otherexpenses 28 207
Total 231 232

Personnel eıpenses

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Wages and salaries 10,890 9.389
Cornpulsory social security obligations 1,002 815
Other beneflts 2,725 2,027
Total 14,618 12.231
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30. Administrative expenses

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Nurol Holding re-eharges 7,005 4,160
Audit and advisory expenses 2,446 1,148
Taxes and duties expenses 2,336 307
Rent expenses 1,489 1,228
Telecommunication expenses 1,131 661
Computer expenses 923 853
Notary expenses 688 629
Transportation expenses 388 133
Hosting expenses 290 207
Maintenance expenses 201 202
Advertising expenses 95 6
Other various administrative expenses 1.695 2,073

Total 18,687 11,638

31. Financial risk management objcctivcs and policies

a) Introduction and overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

• credit risk

• market risks

• liquidity risks

• operational risks

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives. policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s managemem of
capital.

Risk ıııaııageııwnıfraıncıı’oı-k

The Group’s risk approach is to achieve sound and sustainable low risk profile. tlırough the
identiflcation. the measurement and the monitoring of alI types of risks inherent in the nature of the
business activities. The main principle of the Group is to manage the credit risk effectively and to
eliminare the other ıypes of risk by not carıying positions.

in the course of its normal operations. the Group k exposed to a number of risks sııch as credit risk.
liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. The Group’s risk policy can be summarised as:

• welI managing the eredit risk through a high standardised eredit risk management

• eliminating liquidity risk

minimising market risk

in accordance with the Group’s general risk management strategy; the Group aims to eliminate and
hedge its currency, interest rate and maturity positions that miglıt create liquidity or market risk to the
Group. Additionally, in order to minimise the market risk, marketable secıırities portfolio is limited
proportional to the total assets size.

Board of Directors is the highest authority to set alI risk management guidelines, and it is responsible
For ensuring that the Group implements alI necessary risk management techniques in compliance with
the related regulatorv requirernents in Turkey.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Ali risk levels are set and approved by the Board of Directors on a reguiarly basis, and it is announced
to the organization.

The Group manages its exposure to al! types of risks through the Asset and Liability Committee,
comprising members of senior management, anda representative of main shareholder.

in summaıy, in order not to be exposed to any iiquidity, interest rate, market and foreign cuneney risk,
the Group always keeps its funding structure in line with the asset structure (in terms of curreney,
maturity and interest rate) and hedges its positions through various derivative transactions, in addition
to that, the Group does not take any speculative positions on currency, interest rate and maturity İhat
might create any liquidity or market risk to the Group.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk arising from the counter party’s not fulflhling its responsibiiities stated in
the agreement either partialiy or totally. Credit Risk Management Committee is responsibie for
managing eredit risk at the Group.

Total amount of credits granted to a group is subject to certain credit risk iimits. According to the
decision taken by the Board of Directors; the maximum amount of the ban to be granted to a group
(cash and non-cash) is limited with the calculation of certain percentages of the shareholders’ equi
based on the rating of the group. Furthermore, concentration risk is monitored on monthly basis in
terms of industry, rating by risk group and customer.

The credibility of the debtors of the Group 15 assessed periodically. Loan bimits of the ban customers
are revised periodically in line with the Group’s procedures. The Group anaiyses the credibility of the
boans within the framework of its ban policies and obtains collaterais for loans and other receivables.

The restructured and resclıeduied ioans are evaluated in the Group’s current rating system besides the
follow up method determined in the related regulation.

Credit risk by risk groups

Individual Corporate Leasing Total

31 December 2017
Performing loans 77 1,053,237 - 1,053,304
Factoring boans - - - -

Loans under cbose monitoring - 8,320 - 8,320
Non-performing boans - 3,267 - 3,267
Gross 77 1,064,824 - 1,064,901
Transferred asset - 6,730 - 6,730
Reserve for possibie ban bosses - (3,235) - (3,235)
Coliective impairment - (7,943) - (7,943)
Totai 77 1,060,344 - 1,060,453

31 December 2016
Performing Ioans 4,265 725,372 - 729,637
Facioring boans - 46,169 - 46.169
Loans under ciose monitoring - 994 - 994
Non-performing boans - 28 - 28
Gross 4,265 772,563 - 776,828
Transferred asset - 6,43 0 - 6,43 0
Reserve for possible ban iosses - (28) - (28)
Collective impairmeııt - (5,829) - (5,829)
Total 4,265 773,136 - 777,401
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

b) Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

Loans and advances tu
Din, from banks customers

31 31 31 31
December December December December

Noıes 2017 2016 2017 2016

Carrying amount 23,230 136,000 1,060,453 777,401

Individualiy impaired
- Non-performing financial assets - - 3,267 28
Gruss amount - - 3,267 28
Resen’e for possible ban losses 10 - - (3,235) (28)
Coblective impairment - - (7,943) (5.829)
Carrying amonut - - (7,943) (5,829)

Past due but not impaired - - - -

Carrying amount - - - -

Neither past due nor impaired 23,230 136,000 979,959 729,466
Carrying amount 23,230 136,000 979,959 729,466

Restruetured and reschedııled 88 405 53 764
boans and other receivables - -

Carrying amount - - 88,405 53,764

Carrying amount (amortised
cost) 23,230 136,000 1,060,453 777,401

Inpaired locuıs and advances

Individualiy impaired boans are loans and advances for which the Group determines Ihat there is
objective evidence of impairment and it does not expect to coliect ali principal and interest dtıe
according to the contracwal terms of the joan.

Past <lue but not ftnpaired loans

Past due but not impaired loans are those for wlıich contractual interest or principal payrnents are past
due, but the Croup belleves that irnpairment is not appropriate on ilie basis of the level of security /
collateral available and / or the stage of collection ofarnounts owed to the Group.
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31. Financbl risk management objectives and polleles (continued)

b) Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to crediı risk <‘co,ıtüıued)

Resen’e for possible ban bosses

The Group estabiishes an aliowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of incuned
losses in its ban portfolio.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment bosses on assets carried at amortised cost tlıat
represents 115 estimate of incurred losses in üs ban portfolio.

Write-ojpolicy

The Group writes off a ban balance and any related albowances for impairment losses, when Group
position such that the borrower can no bonger pay the obligation, or that proceeds from coblatemi vilI
not sufficient to pay back the entire exposure,

Coliateral polkv

The Group holds coblateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgage interests
over property, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees. Estimates of fair value are based
on the value ofcollateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are not updated except when
a ban 15 individually assessed as impaired. Colbateral generaliy is not heid over due from banks,
except when securitles are heid as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

b) Credit risk (continued)

Collateral pollcy (continued)

The breakdown of performing cash and non-cash Ioans and advances to customers by type of
collateral is as follows:

Cash leans 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Secured cash loans 91 5,672 744, 1 78
Secured by cash collateral 87,53 7 50,999
3rıparo> guarantees 170,358 313.617
Secured by morıgages 191,2 73 100, 650
Seciired by customer cheques acts 171,636 8, 653
Vehick pledge 54,858 73, 621
Marketable securitles 96,832 115,500
Assignment ofreceivables 143,1 74 81,138

Non-secured cash Ioans 122,949 17,905
Accrued interest income on loans 2 1,832 15,3 18

Total performing cash Ioans 1,060,453 777,401

Non-cash Ioans9 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Secured non-cash loans 279,887 248,041
Personal guarantees - 248,027
Secured by cash collateral 1, 010 14
Assigment ofreceivables 13,250 -

3rdparty guarantees 227.454 -

Secured iŞ> customer cheques dc acts 18, 000 -

Secured by morıgages, 455 -

Vehicic pİedge 37, 719 -

Non-secured non cash Ioans 254.3 1 5 22 1, 1 1 1
Total non-cash Ioans 552,202 469,152

Other commitments. lcttcrs of credit and hank acccptances are not ineluded.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and poticies (continued)

b) Credit risk (continued)

Scg,nent concentration

The Group rnonitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic location. An analysis of
concentrations of credit risk from due from banks and Ioans and advances to customers al the reporting
dale is shown below

Duc from banks Loans and advances to customers
2017 2016 2017 2016

Banks 23,230 136,000 - -

Manufncturing - - 16.568 19.101
Prochıcıion - - 16,568 19.301
Construction - - 218.505 99,405
Senices - - 654.845 384,674
lvhoksale and retail trade - - 152, 797 111,627
Hotelfood and beverage sen’ices - - 114,965 -

Financial insıinıtions - - 359,623 129,419
Conmnınicaıion sen’ices - - 25,163 11,415
Health and sockd sen’ices - - 2,387 -

Renting Sen’ice - - - 132,2 13
Other - - 170,503 274,221
Non-performing loans net - - 32 -

Total 23,230 136,000 1,060,453 771,401

Due from banks Loans and advanccs to customen
Noıes 2017 2016 2017 2016

Turkey 12.66! 134 881,218 636.826
Europe 8,852 1.624 25,163
Other 1,717 375 154,042 140.575

6, 10 23,230 136,000 1,060,453 777,401
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

b) Credit risk (continued)

Fair value throughprofit or loss (FVTPL)

At 3 1 December 201 7, the Group has tinancial assets at FVTPL amounting to TL 1,665 (3 1 December
2015— TL 2,593). An analysis of the credit quality of the maximum creditexposure is as follows:

Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Derivatives 8 1,665 2,593

Fair value and carrying amount 1,665 2,593

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group wiil encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated witlı
its fınancial Iiabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another fınancial asset.

Liquidity risk is a substantial risk in the Turkish market, which exhibits signiflcant volatility.

Managenıent ofliquidity risk

in order to manage this risk, the Group measures and manages its cash flow commitments on a daily
basis and maintains Iiquid assets, wlıich itjudges sufflcient to meet its commitments.

The calculation method used to measure the banks compllance with the liquidity limit is set by
Banking Regulaioıy and Supervision Agency (“BRSA’). in November 2006, BRSA issued a new
communique on the measurement of Iiquidity adequacy of the banks. The Group’s liquidity ratios in
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 average

2016 average

First maturity bracket (weekly)
Second maturity bracket

(monthly)

Foreign currency Total Foreign currency Total
(%) (%) (%) (%)

176 238

222 253 113 144
106 137
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continucd)

e) Liquidity risk (eontinued)

As at 3 1 December 2017 and 31 December
maturities of the Groups Fınancial Iiabilities.

2016, the foilowing table provides the contractual

Funds borrowed
Debt securities
[ssued

Funds borrowed
Debt securitles
lssued

31 December 2017

Carrying Contractual 6 month 6 to 12 1 to 2 2 to 5 more (han 5
Amount cash flows or Iess months years years Years

462,441 510,523 331,959 70,708 - 57,494 50,362

638,849 668,280 573,056 11,974 83,250 - -

1,101,290 1,178,803 905,015 82,682 83,250 57,494 50,362

31 December 2016

Carrying Contractual 6 month 6 to 12 1 ta 2 2 loS more than 5
Amount casb flows or Iess months years years Years

175,961 214,012 80,793 63,113 17,376 - 52,730

525,853 563,482 477,232 - 3,000 83,250 -

701,814 777,494 558,025 63,113 20,376 83,250 52,730

Exposure to liquidity risk

Maturity anaiysis of monetaıy assets
below’

and Iiabilities according to their remaining maturities is presented

Less (han
ane 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Unidentifled

31 Decemher 2017 Demand month months months years yenrs maturity Total

Cash and cash equivalcnts 14.913 11.317 452 - - - - 26.682
Reserve dcposits 253,397 58.895 - - - - - 312.292
FVTPL investments - 1.075 590 - - - - 1.665
Available for sale invcstmcnts - 1.075 5.536 305 - 91.081 37.622 136.519
Loans and advanccs 10

customcrs - 325.049 131.237 160,172 370.650 73.313 32 1.060.453
Other assets - 46.637 - - - - 9.912 156.549

Total assets 268,310 544,948 137.815 160,477 370,650 164,394 37,622 1,694,160

Funds borrowcd() 89.85% 81.362 123,560 99.632 49.133 37.797 - 481.342

Dehlsecuritics issued(**)
- 107.644 292.706 169.840 68,659 38.366 - 677.215

Other liabilities 53.034 158.226 74.933 14,719 8.349 - 226.342 535.603

Total Iiabilities 142.892 347,232 491,199 284,191 126,141 76.163 226,342 1,694,160

Liguidity gap 125,418 197,716 (353,384) (123,714) 244.509 88,231 (188,720) -

0ff Balance Sheet Pasition - (4,515) (2,891) (395) 1.452 - - (6,349)

Receivables from derivatives - 414.504 158.339 6.425 153.438 - - 732.706

Liabihitles from derivatives - 419.019 161.230 6.821) 151,986 - - 739.055

Non cash Ioans - - - 9,519 93,706 503,212 - 606,437

() Includes Subordinated Ioans amounting to TL 18,901 in ov 5 vear line.

(“) Inciodes Subordirınted honds amounting tü IL 38.366 in over 5 year line.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

e) Liquidity risk (continucd)

Exposure to liquidity risk (continued,

Less than
Dile 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Unideatifıed

31 December 2016 Demand month months months years years maturity Total

Cash and cash cquivalcnts 2,736 133.578 - - - - - 136,314

Reserve deposits 57,161 26.905 . . - - 84.066

FVTPL investments . 1,961 405 - 227 - . 2,593

Available Ibrsale investments 2,045 7,973 5,276 3,699 26.52! 45.514
Loans and advances to
customers - 86.325 2,031 248.268 397.156 43,62! - 777,40!

Other asseis 98.713 24.950 123.663

Total assets 59,897 347,482 4,48! 256,24! 402.659 47.320 51,471 1,169.551

Funds borrotd - 37.72! 22,82! 81,112 16,702 35,211 - 193.567

Dehı securities issued - 99,522 191.648 170,858 63,825 35.758 - 561.611

Derivative tinancial Iiabilities - 3,385 4,554 4.764 - - - 12,703

Other liahilities 24.164 102,812 111.687 - Il - 162,990 401.670

Total Iiabilities 24,164 243,440 330.710 256,734 80,514 70,969 162,990 1,169,551

Liguidity gap 35,733 104.012 (326.229) (493) 322,115 (23,649) (111,519) -

0ff Balance Sheet Position - (1,363) (4,715) 593 20,358 - - 14,873

Receivables from derivatives - 150.308 201.452 88.235 83.250 - - 523,245

Liabilities from derivatives - 15 1,671 206,167 87.642 62,892 - - 508.372

Non cash Ioans - - - 29,936 46,302 466,537 - 542,776
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign
exchange rates and eredit spreads wili affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instnments.

The Board of Directors of the Group determines the risk Iimits for primaıy risks carried by the Group
and periodicaliy revises these Iimits. For the purpose of hedging market risk, the Group primariiy aims
to balance the foreign curency position, collateralise the Ioans and manage liquidity.

The market risk arising from trading portfolio is monitored, measured and reported using Standardised
Approach to the legal legislation. The monthly market risk report and the weekly eurrency risk reports
prepared are reported to BRSA.

31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 calculated as per the statutory financial statements
prepared for BRSA reporting purposes within the scope of ‘Regulation on Measuremeat and
Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” published in Offıcial Gazerte no. 28337 dated 28
June 2012, are as follows:

2017 2016
Average Highest Lowest Average Highest Lowest

Interest rate risk 4.388 5.523 3,550 1,2 10 3,965 340
Equity price risk - - - - - -

Currency risk 532 952 80 492 1,056 87
Counter party risk - - - 268 1.647 -

Total value-at-risk 4,900 6,475 3,630 1,970 6,668 427
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

Currencv risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign curreney exchange
rates on its financial position and cash flows. Foreign cunency risk indicates the possibility of the
potential losses that the Group i5 subject to due to the exchange rate ınovements in the market.

Position Limit of the Group retated with curreney risk k determined aceording to Foreign Cunency Net
Position Standard raiio determined by BRSA.

The concentrations of assets. liabilities and ofibalance sheet items are as follows:

USD Euro Others Total

2017
Asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 15,969 9,988 245 26,201
Reserve deposits at Central Bank 31,958 26.936 - 58,895
Loans and advances to customers 25,181 293,273 - 318,454
Available for sale investments 86,039 - - 86.039
Otherassets 131,716 15 - 131,761

Total assets 290,863 330,242 245 621350

Liabilities
Fundsborowed 201,747 181.340 8,830 391.917
Subordinated debts 57,267 - 57.267
Other Iiabilities 13,576 248.630 - 262.206

Total liabilities 272,590 429,970 8,830 711390

Cross exposure 18,273 (99,728) (8.585) (90,040)
Off-balance sheet position
Net notional amount ofderivatives (13,318) 100,366 8,737 95,685

Net exposure 4,855 638 152 5,645
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continned)

USD Euro Othcrs Total

2016
Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 5,199 21,774 - 26,973
Reserve deposits at Central Bank 36,614 16,883 87 53,584
Loans and advances to customers 50,29! 268,760 - 319,051
Available for sale investments 3,699 - - 3,699

Other assets 89,944 - - 89,944

Total assets 185,747 307,417 87 493,251

Liabilities
Funds borrowed 44,538 104,064 - 148,602
Subordinated debts 53,364 - - 53,364
Other liabilitles 3,274 206,760 - 2 10,034

Total liabilitles 101,176 310,824 - 412,000

Gross exposure 84,571 (3,407) 87 81,251

Off-balance sheet position
Net notional amount of derivatives (83,863) 4,223 - (79,640)

Netexposure 708 816 87 1,611
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continıwd)

Seıısitivily anaiysis

A 10 percent weakening of TL against the foreign currencies at 3 1 December 201 7 and 3 1 December
2016 would have effect on the equitş and profıt or Ioss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that alt other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The anaiysis is performed
on the same basis for 2015.

2017 Eguity Profıt or Ioss
EUR 64 64
USD 486 486
Other currencies 15 15

Total 565 565

2016 Eguity Profıt or Ioss
EUR 82 82
USD 71 7!
Other currencies 9 9

Total 162 162

A 10 pereent strengthening of the TL against the foreign currencies at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that alt other variables remain constant.

hıterest rate risk

Interest rate risk that would arise from the changes in interest rates depending on the Groups position
is managed by the Asset and Liability Commiüee of the Group.

The Management of the Group follows the interest rates in the market on a daily bask and revises
interest rates of the Group when necessary.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continned)

d> Market risk (continued)

Inıcresı raıe risk (‘coıııiııııecO

The following table indicales the periods in which fınancial assets and Iiabilities reprice as of 31
December 2017 and 3! December 2016:

201,351 (280.948)

18.901 in mcr 5 >ear line.

Includcs Subordinaled bends amountjn,z tü TL 38.366 in over 5 car line.

Derivaıive flnancial nstmments inelude in ether liahiliıies.

Marc Nan
Less (han 1 1-3 3-12 (han 5 interest

month months months 1-5 ycars ycars bcarin Total

As nt 33 December 201?

Asscts

Cash and cash equivalents 11.317 152 - - . 14.913 26.682
Reserve deposils aL Central Bank 58,895 - - - - 253.397 312.292
FVTPL investmenLs 1.075 590 - - - 1.665

Available for sale investments 1,975 5,536 86.344 - 5,042 37.622 136,519

Laans and advances tü customers 325.081 131.237 160.172 370.650 73.313 - 1,060,453

Other assets - - - - - 156.549 156.549

Total assets 398,343 337,815 246.516 370,650 78,355 462,481 1.694,160

Liabilities

Funds borrowed 81.361 123.561 99,632 49,333 37,797 89.858 481,342

DebL securities issued 107,644 292.706 242.577 34.288 - - 677.215

Other liabilitics<”” 7.987 2.496 - 8.348 - 516.772 535.604

Total linbilitles 196.992 318.763 342,209 91,769 37,797 606.630 1,694,160

On balancesheet interestsensitivitygap 201.351 (280.948) (95,693) 278,881 40,558 (144.14%) -

Oli balance shect interest sensitivity gap - - - - - - -

Tatal in(crest sensitivity ap

() Ineludes Subordinnıed bant amountin2 ıo TL

(95,693) 278,881 40,558 (144,148)
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31. Financial risk management objcctives and policies (continued)

d) Market risk (continued)

hıtc’rest rate risk (‘continned)

Lcss More Non
than 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 than 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total

As nt 3! December 2016

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 133,578 - - - - 2,736 136,314

Reserve deposits at Central Bank 26,905 . - - - 57,161 84,066

FVTPL investments 1,961 405 - 227 - - 2,593

Available for sale investments - 8.192 1,825 5,276 3,699 26.522 45.514

Loans and advances to customers 86.325 2,031 248.268 397,156 43.62! - 777.401

Other assets 123.663 123.663

Tabii assets 248,769 10,628 250,093 402,659 47,320 210.082 1,169,551

Liabilities

Funds bonowedt’> 37.722 22.820 81.112 16,702 35.211 - 193.567

Debtsecurities issuedrfl 129.892 227,406 143.180 61.133 - - 561.611

Other liahilities<”” 99.116 1 17.138 4.764 506 - 192.849 414.373

Tahıl Iiabilities 266.730 367.364 229.056 78341 35.211 192,849 1.169,551

On balance sheet interest sensitivity gap (17.961) (356.736) 21.037 324.318 12.109 17.223 -

0ff balance sheel interest sensitivity gap - - - - - - -

Total interest sensitivity gap (17,961) (356,736) 21,037 324,318 12,109 17,223 -

(9 lncludes SubordinaLed loans amounting 10 TL 17,606 in over 5 year line.

(“) Includes Subordinated bonds amounting to TL 35,758 in over 5 year line.

(‘) Derivative fnancial instruments includc in othcr iiahilities.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continned)

d) Market risk (continued)

Sunnnwy ofaverage interest rates

As al 3! December 2017 and 3! December 2016, the summaıy ofaverage interest rates for different
assets and iiabilities are as foilows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Euro USD TL Euro USD TL
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank - 1 .5 3.85 - 0.75 2.9!
Due from banks 0.05 1.15 11.92 0.03 0.60 9.44
FVTPL investments - - - - - -

Placements at money markets - - - - - -

Available for sale fınancial assets - 9.72 14.01 - 8.67 13.46
Loans and advances to customers 6.52 9.8! 17.82 6.70 9.20 16.55
Other - - - - - -

Liabilities
Other money market deposits - - - - - -

Funds borrowed 2.87 5.16 14.13 3.39 2.46 10.99
Debt securities issued - 10.00 13.11 - 10.00 1 1.89
Funds from other fınancial institutions 2.69 4.09 11.94 1.02 0.56 9.72

e) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect Ioss arising from a wide variety of causes associated
with the Groups processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit. market and Iiquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generaily accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from alI of the Group ‘s
operations and are faced by alI business entities.

The operational risk items in the Group are determined in accordance with the defınition of
operational risk by considering the whole processes, products and departments. The control areas are
set for operational risks within the Group and alI operational risks are followed by assigning the risks
to these control areas. in this context, appropriate monitoring methodology is developed for each
control area that covers alI operational risks and control freqııencies are determined.

The Groııp calculated the value at operational risk in accordance with the “Computation of Valııe of
Operational Risk” of the circular, “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy
Ratios of Banks” published in the Offıcial Gazette no. 28337 dated 28 June 2012 and, using gross
profıl of the last three years, 2014, 2015 and 2016. The amount caiculated as TL 101,003 as at 3!
December 2017 (3! December 2016- TL 64,002) represents the operational risk that the Group may
expose and the amount of minimum capital requirement to elirninate this risk.
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

o Capital management

BRSA, the regulatory body of the banking indııstry, sets and monitors capital requirements for the
Group; BRSA requires the banks to maintain a prescribed ratio of minimum 8% of total capital to total
risk-weighted assets.

The Group’s regulatoıy capital is anaiysed into two tiers:

• Tier 1 capilal, capital is composed of the total amount of paid tıp capital, legal, voluntaıy and extra
reserves, proflts for the period afler tax provisions and profits for previous years. The total amount
of Group’ losses for the period and losses for previous years is taken into account asa deduction
item, in the calculation of Tier 1 capital.

• Tier 2 capital, is composed of the total amount of general provisions for credits, fixed assets
revaluation fund, revaluation of available-for-sale fınancial assets and equity investments,
subordinated loans received, free reserves set aside for contingencies and the fund for increase in
the vahue of securities.

Risk-weighted assets are determined aceording to specifıed requirements that seek to reflect the
varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. Operational risk capital
requirement is calculated using Basic Indicator Approach and included in the capital adequacy
calculations.

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with extemally imposed capital
requirements throughout the period.

There have been no material changes in the Group’s management of capital during the period.

The Group’s capital position in accordance with BRSA regulations is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Amount subject to credit risk (1) 1,449,011 1,171,858
Amount subject to market risk (Il) 51,433 50,285
Amount subject to operationah risk (111) 101,003 64,002
Total risk-weigbted assets and valuc at market risk and
operational risk (IV) = (1+11+11) 1,601,447 1,286,145

Shareholders’ equity:
Tier 1 capital 219,195 155,851
Tier2 capital 69,846 67,148
Total regulatory capital 289,041 222,999

Capital adequacy ratio 18.05% 17.34%
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31. Financial risk managcment objectives and policies (continued)

g) Fair values

The determination of fair vaiues of Fınancial assets and financiat Iiabilities k based on quoted market
prices or dealer price quotations for financial instruments traded in active markets or valuation
techniques. However, the Group expects no significant difference between the fair value and carrying
valııe of the financial insirumenis below since their maturities are short-temı.

The table below sets out the Group’s classiflcation of each
their fair values.

class of financial assets and Iiabilities and

Dıher Total
Loons and :vtıiIablt amorılsed turning

.Voıes Tnıdinj! receivables for salt cost amoonı Fair vüloe

2017
Cash and cash equivnlents 6 - 26.682 - - 26.682 26682
Resene deposits at Central Bank 7 - 312.292 - - 312.292 312.292
FVTPL nvestments 8 1.665 . . - 1.665 1.665
Available for sale investments 9 - - 136.519 . 136.519 136.519
Luans and advances to custornerst1 10 - 1.060,453 - . 1.060.453 1.060.453
Otherasset - - - 145.156 145,156 145,156

1.665 1399.427 136519 135.156 1.682,767 1.682,767

Funds honowed 15 - - - 462,341 462.431 506,699
Debt securities issued’> 17 - - . 638.849 638.839 638.849
Derivative Onancial liabilities 18.831 - - - 18,831 18.831
üher Iiabilities - - - 265,129 265.129 265.129

18.831 - - 1366,419 1385.250 1,429508

(1) The Group managemeni assumes Lhat the fair values of the loans and debt sccurities issued appruxirnale ıheir carning values since the
nıajority of thern art short-term.

Other ‘rotal
Loans and :vtıiIahlt ımor6scd corn’ing

.Voıes Tradlım receivahles for salt tost amount rair valuc

2016
Cash and cash equivaleots 6 - 136.314 - - 136.314 136.314
Resene dcposits at Central EanL 7 - 84.066 - . 84,066 84,066
Heid lbr triding investmcnıs 8 2.593 . . - 2.593 2.593
Aailahle tbrsale inestmcnts 9 - - 45.514 - 45.514 45.514
Loaos and advanees 10 cuslorners°> /0 - 777.401 . - 777,401 777,401
Otherasset - - . 116.716 116.716 116.716

2593 997.781 45.514 116.716 1,162,604 1,162,604

Fundsborrowed 15 - - - 175.961 175,961 214,012
Debt seeurities ssued”> 17 - - - 525,853 525.853 525,853
Derivative fnancial liabilities 12,703 - . . 12.703 12.703
Other liabiliıics — — — 210,1 Il 2111.1 Il 210.111

12,703 - - 911.925 924.628 923.628

I’he Group rnanagement assurnes (hat the Ihir values of the loans
rnajority of thern are short-terrn.

and debt securilies issued upproxirnate their canying values since the

Loans and advances to custoııc’rs

Loans and advances to custorners
Ioans and advances to customers
expected to be received. Expected
value.

are net of provisions for impairmeni. The estimated fair value of
represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
cash iows afe discounted at current market rates to determine fair
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

g) Fair values (continued)

Fair values of remaining financial assets and liabilities carried at cost, ineluding cash and cash
equivalents, reserve deposits at Central Bank, current account of ban customers and funds borrowed
are considered to approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the signiflcance
of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments using valuation techniques where alI
signifıcant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using signifıcant unobservable inputs. This category includes alI
instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a signiflcant effect on the instrument’s valuation.

Fair values of financial assets and financial Iiabilities that are traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For al! other fınancial instruments, the Group
determines fair values using valuation techniques.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models. Assumptions and
inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates. The objective of
valuation techniques 15 to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market participants acting at
arm’s length.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of common and
more simple financial instruments, ilke forwards and currency swaps, that use only observable market
data and require little management judgement and estimation. Observable prices and model inputs are
usually available in the market for listed debt securities. Availability of observable market prices and
model inputs reduces the need for management judgement and estimation and also reduces the
uncertainty associated with determination of fair values. Availability of observable market prices and
inpııts varies depending on the products and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events
and general conditions in the financial markets. This table bebow analyses financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurement is categorised:

31 December 2017 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Derivative Fınancial assets 8 - 1,665 - 1,665
Available for sale investments 9 136,519 - - 136,519
lnvestment property 13 - - 4,440 4,440
Derivative tinancial liabilities 22 - 18,831 - 18,83 1

31 December 2016 Mile Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Derivative financial assets 8 2,593 - - 2.593
Available for sale investments 9 45,514 - - 45.514
lnvestment property 13 - - 19,920 19,920
Derivative Fınancial liabilities 22 - 12,703 - 12.703
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32. Related partics

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other partş or exercise
signiflcant influence over the other parıy in making the financial and operating decisions.

in the course of conducting its banking business, the Group conducted various business transactions
with related parties. These include Ioans. cuslomer accounts, funds borrowed and non-cash
transactions. The volumes of related party transnctions, outstanding balances at year-end and relating
expense and income for the period are as follows:

Percentage of the
financial statement

31 December 2017 Balance amount(%)

Non-cash loans 16,475 3%
Funds borrowed / Current accoıınts of ban customers 100,707 22%

Percentage of the
financial statement

31 December 2016 Balance amount(%)

Non-cash ioans 28,142 6%
Funds borrowed / Current accounts of ban customers 9,970 6%

Percentage of the
financial statement

31 December20l7 Balance amount(%)

interest and commission income 3,842 2%
Other operating expense (-) - 0%

Percentage of the
financial statement

31 December 2016 Balance amount (%)

Interest and commission income 13.987 9%
Other operating expense (-) 4,160 17%

As at 31 December 2017. no provisions have been recognised in respect of Ioans giyen to related
parties (2016 — none).

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

The executive and non-executive member of Board of Directors and management received
remuneration and fees amounted to TL 6.658 comprising salaries and other beneflts for the period 1
Januaıw-3 1 December 2017<1 Januarv -3! December 2016: TL 5.801).

33. Events after babance sheet dale

None.
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